
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A
December 19, 2023 

5:00 PM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Board Room 

Pledge and Invocation 

Agenda Approval 

Minutes 
1. December 05, 2023-pg. #2

New Business 
2. Recreation Construction Manager at Risk 2nd Amendment Establishing Building GMP & 

Schedule for Phase 2 Community Center & Athletic Complex-pg. #10
3. Development Authority Board Vacancies-pg. #32
4. Elections Board Vacancies-pg. #33
5. Tax Assessors Board Vacancy-pg. #34
6. Planning Commission Board Vacancy-pg. #35
7. Public Comments on Agenda Items

8. Commissioner Comments

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
9. Personnel

1



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 1 of 8 
 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.  

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Ben Riden, Jr., Vice-Chair Bill Kurtz, Commissioners Philipp von 

Hanstein, Donald Harris, and Blake McCormack. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Assistant County Manager Mark Williams, 

County Attorney Christian Henry, and County Clerk Leslie Brandt.       

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve the 

agenda as presented.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

MINUTES 
November 27, 2023 BOC Meeting 

 

Motion by Commissioner McCormack, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 

minutes as presented.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to accept as information the November 2023 payables and financials. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to approve the 

consent agenda as presented. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO TABLE 4.1 TO ADD SHIPPING CONTAINERS AND 

ASSOCIATED REGULATIONS TO THE MORGAN COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 

On February 26, 2023 - Gerald and Summer Wood requested a text amendment to add shipping 

containers to Table 4.1. The Planning Commission tabled the request for staff to work with the 

Wood’s to address concerns and questions concerning shipping containers. 

 

At the April 27, 2023 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 

denial of the text amendment by a vote of 4 to 2. 

 

The request then went before the Board of Commissioners on May 2, 2023 . The Board tabled 

the text amendment for further consideration. 

 

The request was tabled again by the Board of Commissioners on June 6, 2023 and September 5, 

2023. 

 

The language below has been modified to address comments from Commissioners: 

2



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 2 of 8 
 
 

 
 

3



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 3 of 8 
 
 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, Seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve 

the text amendment to allow shipping containers as accessory buildings in the AG, AR, C2, and 

C3 zoning districts with 5 or more acres with the following amendment: grandfather all existing 

containers, subject to exterior appearance and screening, with the option to move the container. 

Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

PROPOSED DESIGN STANDARDS FOR HOUSING IN COMMON DEVELOPMENTS 

Planning Director, Chuck Jarrell presented proposed language for form based design standards. 

The proposed design standards would apply to residential subdivisions with five or more 

houses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 4 of 8 
 
 

 

 

 

 

5



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 5 of 8 
 
 

 

 

 

 

6



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 

 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Kurtz, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to adopt the form 

based design standards for all common developments and add the language to the Code of 

Morgan County, Chapter 14 - Building and Building Regulations with the following amendment, 

slab must be 12”-32”. Commissioner von Hanstein voted in favor of the motion and 

Commissioner Harris voted against the motion. Motion Passed 3-1. 

 

FRED TURNER TAX REFUND REQUEST 

Fred Turner, on behalf of Alfred Turner and Dolores Turner, is seeking a tax refund for a CUVA 

breach. The land was previously owned by Alfred Turner and Jerry Turner and was in CUVA. 

However, Jerry Turner passed away in August 2021 and his portion of the property was 

7



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 7 of 8 
 
 

transferred to Dolores Turner in March 2022. The Turner’s were not aware the ownership transfer 

required additional steps in the CUVA program to avoid a breach penalty. A certified letter was 

mailed to the Turner’s but was returned as undeliverable as addressed on May 01, 2023. 

Therefore, the Turner’s were not aware the change in ownership was a breach of the CUVA 

contract. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to approve the tax 

refund request in the amount of $31,586.00. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSES FOR THE FOLLOWING 

BUSINESSES: 

1) Fairplay Express 

2) Rainbow Food Mart 

3) Golden Pond Valero 

4) Apalachee Mart 

5) The Pit Stop 

6) Sandhu Food Mart 

7) The General Store 

8) The River Store 

9) Blue Springs Marina 

 

MOTION by Commissioner von Hanstein, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 

alcohol license applications for 2024 as listed above.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

TRANSIT EXPANSION 

Social Circle is discontinuing its 5311 services. Morgan County has been asked to take over the 

transportation in this area at no extra cost to Morgan County Citizens. Transit Director, Stephanie 

Martin has amended the requested 5311 budget contract for FY25 to include the additional cost 

and State reimbursements to add the area. GDOT has also asked Morgan County to extend 

services to Oconee County and Jasper County residents (they have no current Transit Services). 

Including these counties will not be any additional cost to Morgan County. This expansion will 

benefit Morgan County residents by extending the service area and how often we can provide 

trips into those areas. Service hours will stay the same. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 

expansion into Social Circle/Monroe, Jasper, and Oconee contingent on receiving the applicable 

funds tied to the program. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT 

County Manager, Adam Mestres, presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's 

current projects and/or issues. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Rutledge resident, JoEllen Artz commented on the Form Based Design Standards. 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Commissioners made comments and gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to exit regular 

session at 11:45 a.m. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION- PERSONNEL  

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to enter Executive 

Session to discuss personnel at 11:50 a.m. Motion Passed Unanimously. (Original signed 

Affidavit in Executive Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner von Hanstein, seconded by Commissioner McCormack to exit 

Executive Session and adjourn at 2:17 p.m. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

8



December 05, 2023 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ben Riden, Jr., Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35


	Top
	Item1.	December 05, 2023 Minutes
	12-05-2023 BOC Minutes -Draft

	Item2.	Recreation Construction Manager at Risk 2nd Amendment Establishing Building GMP & Schedule for Phase 2 Community Center & Athletic Complex
	Parrish Amendment No. 2_MCRD Buildings

	Item3.	Development Authority Board Vacancies
	Devel. Auth. Board

	Item4.	Elections Board Vacancies
	Elections Board

	Item5.	Tax Assessors Board Vacancy
	TA Board

	Item6.	Planning Commission Board Vacancy
	Planning Board

	Item7.	PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS
	Item8.	Commissioner Comments
	Item9.	Exec-Personnel 12192023
	Bottom

